

BYLAWS OF CDO SOCCER ALLIANCE

CDO Soccer Alliance 10645 N. Oracle Rd. Suite 121-Box 200 Oro Valley, AZ 85737

cdosoccer.com

Article I - Membership

Any person interested in participating in and furthering, the objectives of the Club, who is willing to uphold its policies and subscribe to its Bylaws, may become a member as hereinafter provided.

A. VOTING MEMBERS

Voting members shall elect the Board of Directors of the CDO Soccer Club; vote on the amendments to the Bylaws, Rules and Regulations; approve the budget; and conduct any other business at the Annual General Meeting.

The voting members of this organization shall be persons who are elected members of the Board of Directors. In addition, at the AGM only, each team may designate up to one (1) associate member as a voting member to cast votes on behalf of the team. Each team has a maximum of one vote. Eligible teams are defined as those who formed in the CDO Soccer Club, and registered with USYS under CDO Soccer Club name during the season pertaining to the AGM. The Club Season is from May 1st to April 30th of the following calendar year. Any existing team or player who has accepted a position with another Club or not participated in the CDO tryouts or not expressed an interest to be a member of the Club forfeit their membership interest in the CDO Soccer Club and all voting privileges defined herein. The Board of Directors may award voting membership for meritorious service to any person who would not otherwise be entitled to membership.

Proxy voting will not be permitted.

The Director of Coaching duty described in Article II is voted on by the Board of Directors outside the AGM.

B. ASSOCIATE MEMBERS

Associate Members may participate in the discussion and debate at the AGM but may not vote. All registered players, their parents or guardians shall be Associate Members. All visitors who are not Voting Members shall be Associate Members.

C. REMOVAL OF A MEMBER

Should the Board of Directors, upon the recommendation of the Discipline and Rules Committee, find the conduct of any member (whether player, parent, coach, assistant coach, or board member) be detrimental to the best interests of the CDO Soccer Club or the purpose for which it was formed, the Board of Directors may take such action as the Board of Directors may deem reasonable, including, but not limited to, suspension or removal from the membership in the CDO Soccer Club. Such action shall require an affirmative vote of two thirds of the Board of Directors. Any person who has been convicted of or legally charged with a crime involving moral or ethical conduct will be temporarily suspended from participating in all CDO Soccer Club activities pending-a hearing before the Disciplinary Committee. The purpose of the hearing shall

be to determine the person's fitness to participate in CDO Soccer Club activities. The person involved shall be allowed to make a presentation before the Disciplinary Committee before any decision is rendered. Based on the recommendation of the Disciplinary Committee, the decision to grant or suspend the right to participate in CDO Soccer Club activities shall be made by a simple majority vote of the Board of Directors. Any Board member who is absent without excusable cause for three (3) consecutive meetings of the Board of Directors shall there by forfeit, without additional formality, the right to hold his/her respective office for the duration of the current term.

Article II - Board of Directors

A. AUTHORITY

Subject to the limitations of the Bylaws, Rules and Regulations and the Laws of the State of Arizona, all of this Association's powers shall be exercised by or under the authority of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall control all business and other affairs of this Association.

B. ELECTIONS

The authorized number of the Board of this Association shall be no more than twelve (12) Board Members elected at the Annual General Meeting.

B.1. ELECTION CYCLES (Bylaw Change 2/22/23)

To ensure continuity of club operations each BOD position is requested to commit to a 2-year term. BOD positions will fall into alternating election cycles every other year. The phase of the 2-year alternating cycles will begin during the 2023/24 election cycle as follows:

Even numbered years will be: (Ex. 2024/25, 2027/28)

- 1. President
- 2. Registrar

Odd years will be: (Ex. 2025/26, 2027/28)

- 1. Vice President
- 2. Treasurer

Due to the DOC board position being a paid position within the club, the DOC will be up for election every year. Any other added positions through bylaw changes will be added to the election cycle accordingly.

Should any BOD wish to resign, it is requested that they notify the current BOD with a minimum of a 30 day notice.

C. VACANCIES

Vacancies that occur during the seasonal year shall be filled by a vote of the majority of the remaining members of the Board of Directors according to the following provisions: It must be deemed necessary by a majority vote of the remaining Board of Directors that the vacancy be filled so that the business of the Association may be effectively conducted. A voting member of the club is identified by a person who is willing to fill the position. The position shall be filled only for the duration of the unexpired term of the vacated position at the end of which time the members of this Association shall nominate and elect a Board Member during the Annual General Meeting.

D. BOARD OF DIRECTORS (BOD) & DUTIES (Voting)

The Duties of the Directors shall include but not be limited to the following:

PRESIDENT

The President shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the club and shall be subject to the control of the Board of Directors and have general supervision, direction and control of the business and the officers of the Club. He/She shall preside at all meetings of CDO Soccer Club and at all meetings of the Board of Directors. He/She shall be an ex-officio member of all committees and shall have the general powers and duties of management usually vested in the President of an organization and shall have other powers and duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors or by the Bylaws.

VICE-PRESIDENT

In the absence or disability of the President, the Vice-President, if so requested, shall perform all of the duties of the President and when so acting, shall have all of the powers of, and be subject to all the restrictions upon the President. The Vice-President shall serve as the Chairperson of the Discipline and Rules Committee. Additionally, the VP will be primarily responsible for all mass communications to CDO soccer club and have general supervision of all administrative functions.

TREASURER

The Treasurer shall keep and maintain, or cause to be kept and maintained, adequate and correct accounts of the properties and business transactions of the organization, including accounts of its assets, liabilities, capital; receipts, disbursements, gains, losses, surplus and any other accounts. The Treasurer shall deposit all moneys and other valuables in the name of and to the credit of the organization at least monthly. The Treasurer shall disburse the funds of the organization pursuant to the annual budget approved by the Board of Directors. All accounts shall be paid by check or club debit card, which shall bear the signature of the Treasurer, and/or the President/Vice President. Disbursements for non-budgeted expenditures in excess of (\$250) dollars must be approved by a majority vote of the Board of Directors. The President may

approve non-budgeted expenditures up to and including (\$250) dollars. The Treasurer shall render to the President and Board of Directors, whenever requested, an account of all of his/her transactions as Treasurer and of the financial condition of the organization. The books of accounts shall be at all reasonable times open to inspection by any Director. The Treasurer shall tender all such records and accounts to the successor Treasurer immediately following the next annual election. The Treasurer shall provide all requested reports to the Pima County Junior Soccer League when requested.

REGISTRAR

The Registrar shall organize and coordinate all procedures for player registration within the Registrar's jurisdiction, including, but not limited to: developing registration forms, verifying and maintaining copies of player birth certificates, registering players, providing player passes, transfer and drop forms to coaches, maintaining current and past copies of the Club database, tracking refunds to maintain accurate registered player records, providing flighting forms, field registration forms and other administrative forms, as requested, to the Board or Directors and Coaches. The Registrar shall, in conjunction with the Coaching Directors maintain a waiting list of players who desire to be placed on teams in the event of an opening on a team. The Registrar shall attend the annual training sessions and shall notify all appropriate parties of the due dates for all necessary registration forms. The Registrar shall keep all registration documentation, which shall be deemed part of the official records of the Club, and shall tender all such documents and records to the successor Registrar immediately following the next annual election, and shall have such other powers and performs such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors or by the Bylaws. He/she will ensure that all Risk Management requirements are met by all club volunteers and coaches. He/She will also be in charge of all team managers and trainings required to get team managers in compliance with the role of team manager.

DIRECTOR OF COACHING

The Director of Coaching (DOC) shall be responsible for developing and improving coaches so that players maximize their potential at all ages. They shall represent the views, ideas, and needs of the coaches and players in the club. The DOC shall create a culture that values, incentivizes, and prioritizes player development. This role is typically, but not always, identified as the DOC within the coach leadership structure of the organization. However, this role may be held by multiple individuals. This role is voted on by the Board of Directors. In the event multiple individuals fill this role within the organization, the Board of Directors votes on one individual to vote on behalf of the DOC board roll.

Article III - Special Committees

A. DISCIPLINE AND RULES COMMITTEE

The Chairperson shall be the Vice-President and shall select two other Board member to form the committee, unless his/her team is involved, in which case the Club President shall select the committee and Chairperson. If any member of the DNR Committee has a child playing on any team involved in a particular hearing, or any other connection with the team, then that member shall not participate in any way in the hearing. A committee member with a conflict shall be replaced by the purposes of the hearing by the Club President. All complaints received by the Discipline and Rules Committee shall be in writing and shall be logged in as to the date received and nature of the complaint. The best interests of the Club may be served if relevant parties to the complaint are requested to appear at a hearing. If a hearing is held it is clearly a fact-finding session in which the parties are able to state their respective cases. At the conclusion of the hearing, all non-committee individuals will be excused and the Committee shall decide on a course of action. All complaints shall receive a written reply from the Committee.

B. AD HOC COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors shall form Ad Hoc Committees as necessary. Meetings shall be conducted as a committee of the whole. An Ad Hoc Committee shall have a specified purpose, designated power or authority to do its job, have a time limit for reporting or completing its duties, and a budget, if necessary.

Article IV - Meetings

Official meetings of the Board shall be posted on the website at least 7 days in advance of the meeting noting the time, date, and location of the meeting. If an emergency meeting of the board is required, a minimum of 24 hours notification to the rest of the BOD shall be communicated. An Annual General Meeting of the membership of the organization shall be held once per year.

A. OFFICIAL MEETINGS

Official Meetings of the Board of Directors Strive to meet once every 3 months. The order of normal business shall be conducted during Official Board meetings shall be as follows:

General Information Session
Call to Order
Roll Call
Introduction of Visitors
Acceptance of the Minutes from the previous meeting
Board Member Reports
Unfinished Business
New Business
Adjournment

The presence of a majority of the voting members of the Board shall constitute a quorum to transact business at any meeting of this organization, however during the course of the meeting a majority of the Board is not maintained the meeting is suspended and no further Club business can be transacted.

B. SPECIAL MEETINGS

Special Meetings of the Board of Directors, for any purpose or purposes may be called at any time by the President or Vice-President, or if either is absent or refuses to act, by any twenty-five (25) percent of the Board of Directors membership. Written notice of the time and location of the special meeting shall be emailed, or notice may be given by telephone to each board member, a minimum of 48 hours, prior to holding such meeting. Any Meeting shall be valid, wherever held, if approved in writing by a quorum either before or after the meeting and if such written approval is filed with the Secretary of the Club.

C. ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

An Annual General Meeting (AGM) of CDO Soccer Club shall be held between February 1st and April 30th of the CDO Soccer Club Season.

The Board of Directors shall set the specific date, time and location of the meeting.

The Board of Directors shall post the AGM time and location on the CDO Soccer Web page not less than one week prior to the meeting.

All those voting members present will be considered a quorum for the purpose of transacting business.

The order of Business for the Annual General Meeting shall follow Roberts Rules of Order and shall be as follows:

Call to Order
Roll call
Approval of Minutes of Previous AGM
Officers Reports
Old Business
Proposed Budget
Amendments to Constitution/Bylaws/Rules and Regulations
New Business Election of Officers
Adjournment

Article V - Registration

A. FEE DETERMINATION

The registration fee shall be determined annually by the Board of Directors.

B. COMPLETED REGISTRATION

Fees are due and payable at registration. No player will be registered unless all fees are paid and all papers are fully completed. Checks shall be made payable to: CDO Soccer Club.

Article VI - Club Records and Reports

A. RECORDS

CDO Soccer Club shall maintain adequate and correct accounts, books, and records of its business and properties.

B. INSPECTION OF BOOKS AND RECORDS

All books and records shall be open to the Directors and members of CDO Soccer Club within the scope required. The original copy of these Bylaws, as amended or otherwise altered to date and certified by the Board of Directors, shall be open to inspection for the members of this organization.

C. CONTRACTS

The President in conjunction with the Board of Directors, except as otherwise provided in the Bylaws, may authorize any officer or officers, agent or agents, to enter into any contract or execute any instrument in the name of and on behalf of this Organization subject to the following provisions:

The Board must approve, in advance, any expenditure of over \$250 for any non-budgeted item.

Anyone failing to comply with this provision is subject to immediate removal from the office by a vote of the simple majority of the Board members present in a legally constituted meeting. The organization reserves the right to recover equivalent funds from the person(s) responsible for unauthorized expenditures.

D. FILING RESPONSIBILITIES

The President, in conjunction with the Treasurer and the Board, shall direct the accomplishment of the following:

The proper execution and submittal of tax forms (local, state, and federal) as legally required.

The proper execution and submittal of forms as required by state or federal agencies to maintain the legal, tax-exempt status of the organization.

The fiscal year of CDO Soccer Club shall be May 1 to April 30.

Article VII - Financial Disclaimer

A. The CDO Soccer Club shall not assume, nor be liable for the personal debts and/or financial responsibilities, either implied or incurred, of any member player, coach, manager, team assistant, referee or Board Member.

Article VIII - Responsibilities

A. All coaches shall be responsible for governing their team members.

B. A plea of ignorance of the constitution, Bylaws, or Rules and Regulations of this Organization is not sufficient and violators may expect appropriate action from the Board of Directors.

C. Any person found guilty of violating the Bylaws, or Rules and Regulations of this Association may be asked to appear before the Board of Directors or the Discipline and Rules Committee in order to explain his/her actions.

Article IX - Liability Protection and Indemnification of Officers, Directors, Employees and Agents

All officials of this Association and its teams shall be covered against personal liability claims by the Arizona Youth Soccer Association for performing acts and duties directly related to the work of CDO Soccer Club and the AYSA. Subject to the provisions of 10-005, Arizona Revised Statues, and the further provisions hereof, the Club shall indemnify any and all of its existing and former Directors, officers, employees, and agents against all expenses incurred by them and each of them, which may arise from any legal action brought or threatened against any of them for or on account of any action or omission alleged to have been committed while acting within the scope of service to the Club. Any existing or former Director, officer, employee, or agent shall report to the President of the Club that he/she has incurred or may incur expenses for any of his/her actions or omissions done while acting within the scope of his/her service as Director, officer, employee or agent of the Club. The Club shall have the right to refuse indemnification to any person otherwise entitled to indemnification if that person unreasonably refuses to permit the Club, at its own expense, and through counsel of its own choosing, to defend him/her in the action.

Article X - Amendments

A. Any club member may submit a proposal to amend the Bylaws.

- B. All proposed Amendments to the Bylaws of this Association must be submitted in writing to the Club Vice President by December 1st unless otherwise approved by the majority of the board, and will be made available to all association members at least thirty days prior to the AGM.
- C. Adoption of a proposed amendment requires a two-thirds vote of the membership present at the AGM
- D. Any amendment of these Bylaws adopted at the AGM shall become effective immediately.
- E. Any amendments passed at the AGM of the AYSA, US Club, USYSA or the USSF, which may affect these Bylaws, shall be distributed at the AGM and will become effective upon distribution.

Article XI - Ratification

The Ratification and Signature of 2/3rds members of the current CDO Soccer Club Board of Directors shall be sufficient for the establishment of these Bylaws. In Witness whereof, we have here unto subscribed our names this 1st day of April, 2023.

SIGNATURES ON FILE

Document Change History

PREVIOUS BYLAWS: RATIFIED/UPDATED 28-JUNE-2006 1 April 2023

Article XII – AYSO ALLIANCE MERGER (21 March 2023)

Official merger document signed by the BOD for AYSO ALLIANCE and CDO SOCCER CLUB. All info will be adhered to from within the official document.